# Star Death

## The Case of the Crab Nebula

Nathan Mossaad Humboldtgymnasium Solingen Grade Q1 Project work as part of the project course Astronomy 2020/21 at CFG Wuppertal Course tutor: Bernd Koch Submission date: 2021-05-17



Image: 2021-01-12 Nathan Mossaad Image of Crab Nebula

## **Table of Contents**

1	Introduction	4
	1.1 Overview	4
	1.2 Tasks	4
2	Theoretical basics	5
3	Photography of the Crab Nebula	8
	3.1 Hardware	8
	3.2 Software	9
	3.2.1 10micron Keypad	9
	3.2.2 FocusLynx	9
	3.2.3 Dimension 4	.10
	3.2.4 SpecTrack	10
	3.2.5 MaxIm DL	11
	3.2.6 Astroart	.12
	3.2.7 Stellarium	.13
	3.2.8 GIMP	14
	3.2.9 Inkscape	.15
	3.2.10 LibreOffice Calc	.16
4	Color photography	17
	4.1 Taking the raw images	17
	4.2 Image processing	.18
	4.2.1 Time-lapse	.20
5	Data from external sources	21
	5.1 Spectrum	21
	5.1.1 General information	.21
	5.1.2 Reference image of crab nebula	.22
6	Birthdate of Crab Nebula	24
	6.1 Preparation	.24
	6.2 Creating more representations	.25
	6.3 Calculation of the expansion rate of the Crab Nebula	26
	6.3.1 Calculation	26

	6.3.1.1 I	Reference Points	27
	6.3.1.2 I	Distance from neutron star to measurement point	
	6.3.1.3	Setting up the linear function	
	6.3.1.4	Calculating the precise year	29
	6.3.2 Spre	adsheet Analysis	
7	Expansion V	elocity, Size and Distance of the Crab Nebula	31
	7.1 Preparation	on	
	7.2 Calculatio	ons	
	7.2.1 Conv	version Rate	32
	7.2.2 Expa	nsion Rate	
	7.2.2.1	Getting the data	33
	7.2.2.2	Calculating the Expansion Velocity	33
	7.2.3 Size	and Distance	
	7.2.3.1	Time since Crab Nebulas birth	34
	7.2.3.2	Size of Crab Nebula	34
	7.2.3.3	Distance to earth	
8	Analysis of t	he Results	35
	8.1 Birthdate	of Crab Nebula	
	8.2 Expansio	n Velocity, Size and Distance of the Crab Nebula	36
	8.2.1 Expla	anation	36
	8.2.2 The o	data	
9	Conclusion		40
10	References.		40
11	Acknowledg	ements	41
12	Final declara	ation	41

## 1 Introduction

#### 1.1 Overview

What happens when a star dies? What can we learn from its remaining Nebula? In this paper I will take you on a journey of what we can learn with relatively easily obtainable information, without the need to have a lot of prior knowledge. Throughout I will guide you to a deeper understanding of the remains of Crab Nebula and what information can be calculated.

There are two central questions that followed me throughout .:

First "How can I prove when Crab Nebula was born ?"

Second "How far is it from us, from our earth ?"

The answers to these two, on the surface simple, questions are provided by this paper. Even without prior knowledge we will take a dive into more complicated astronomical knowledge accompanied by mathematical calculations. To achieve this you will find several images and animations, which will accompany you throughout the following events.

Crab Nebula is especially suitable for this purpose, as it was the best fit at the time of research: bright enough and with lots of available sources.

Technical Note:

The animations are embedded right into this PDF and can be played by simply clicking on them.

## 1.2 Tasks

The task I set out for my self is analyzing the Crab Nebula from birth up until now. On this journey I will explain the following aspects:

- Developing the images in software
- Calculating the birthdate of Crab Nebula
- Calculating expansion rate, size and distance
- Analyzing how accurate the results are

## 2 Theoretical basics

To understand the whole picture we first have to understand the basics. Explaining what a Supernova is, we first have to understand the evolution of stars. Before that we have to know what its predecessor is and how it stays "alive". This can only be understood with some basics.

As a refresher:

An atom can be represented in two essential parts, one of them being the nucleus the other one being the surrounding electrons. We are interested in the electrons and the nucleus with its protons and neutrons. Imagine the protons and neutrons as little bubbles in a bigger bubble with the electrons orbiting around the nucleus in circular orbits.

A star like our sun keeps itself alive through two forces cancelling each other out. One of them being gravity and the other fusion. Everything that we know is influenced by gravity<sup>1</sup>.

Due to gravity everything gets pulled together:

The more mass in one area, the stronger its gravitational attraction. This indicates, if some objects are in an absolute vacuum, these would get pulled together. In a star these atoms exert an enormous amount of pressure on each other, pulling themselves into a sphere. This results in equilibrium, where an even pressure is built up.

The deeper you go into this sphere the higher the pressure gets. At a certain threshold all the built-up pressure results in the atoms stripping their electrons. With even more pressure the remaining nuclei start to fuse and release energy in the form of heat and light. This force pushes against gravity and holds the star in a stable equilibrium until the fuel runs out<sup>2</sup>.

The Hertzsprung–Russell diagram (Fig.1) shows the luminosity increasing as the stars appear higher in the chart and the color of the light increasing as it moves further right. It represents the different star types. Only red giants and supergiants explode in a supernova. Lighter stars, which are in the bottom and middle of the diagram, don't have enough mass to end in such a spectacle. Crab Nebula once was a red giant, which exploded.



Fig. 1: HR-sparse by User:Rursus 2007-04-30 from https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:HR-sparse.svg

Running out of hydrogen is the beginning of the end of a star. The hydrogen fuses into helium, after that heavier elements fuse. Subsequently, oxygen fuses into neon, silicon, sulfur and at last into iron<sup>3</sup>.

Each heavier element gives of less and less energy than its predecessor, which makes its existing time shorter and shorter. Iron is so heavy, it needs more energy to fuse than it releases at fusion. This means no further fusion will happen from that point on, and the star will die.

The death of a heavy star is the birth of the supernova.

There now is no force opposing the gravitational pull. The surrounding matter pushes everything even closer together until it implodes.

In the center, the now fully iron core, gets squished so far, all the nuclei get pushed onto each other, and the entire space fills up like it were one giant super-nuclei. The entire star implodes, and the outer mass bounces off the core in a giant explosion, and the supernova gets born.



Fig. 2: Crab Nebula by Nathan Mossaad 2021-01-12

The original core now is a new star: A neutron star as it is entirely made out of neutrons, which are parts of a nucleus. In the photo the new star is marked with arrows<sup>4</sup>.

This process can be seen in this graphic by following the upper path up to the neutron star:



Fig. 3: Star Life Cycle Chart by R.N. Bailey 2017-05-23 from https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Star\_Life\_Cycle\_Chart.jpg

## 3 Photography of the Crab Nebula

## 3.1 Hardware

The following table contains the hardware that was used for the images:

Camera	STF-8300M with Baader RGB CCD-filter⁵	
2 <sup>nd</sup> Camera	ZWO ASI 183 MC Pro ASI183MCPRO <sup>6</sup>	
Telescope	Celestron EdgeHD Tubus 0,76m <sup>ℤ</sup>	The setup can be
Telescope type	Schmidt-Cassegrain 0,36m	seen in this image:



Fig. 4: Used Telescope from Bernd Koch by Bernd Koch 2021-01-12

#### 3.2 Software

#### 3.2.1 10micron Keypad



This software allows us to control the telescope with a PC. It is a mirror of the attached keypad, which allows remote control from inside a house, without giving up monitoring of the telescope. It shows status, and the direction in which the telescope is pointing.

 $\rightarrow$  This is used when taking images

Fig. 5: 10micron Keypad

#### 3.2.2 FocusLynx



Fig. 6: FocusLynx

This software also connects to parts of the telescope and keeps a given object in focus. Using FocusLynx there is no need of keeping the object focused manually. This is valuable as often as in our case, the object is to dim to see properly without enough illumination time with a camera.

 $\rightarrow$  This is used when taking images

#### 3.2.3 Dimension 4



This software synchronizes the PC clock with other time-servers to have accurate time. In the image on the left we have an accuracy of  $\pm 0.013$  seconds. If we see something new, we can compare it with images from other astronomers and with a bit of luck further human knowledge, e.g. for when an object flies by.

 $\rightarrow$  This is used when taking images

Fig. 7: Dimension 4



3.2.4 SpecTrack

This is a simple tool that takes the image of a camera to adjust the telescope to look at an object live while photographing. This results in less jitter than other software can provide by default.

 $\rightarrow$  This is used when taking images

Fig. 8: SpecTrack

#### 3.2.5 MaxIm DL

MaxIm DL Pro 6 - CCD Image 411.fit	
Elle Edit View Analyze Process Filter Color Plug-in Window Help	
🖬 님 요 근 🔤 🕸 🗿 😫 🕵 🔍 97.5% 🔽 🎊	
CCD Image 431.ft	()
CCD Image 411.fit	
	PinPoint Astrometry ? X
	Detection Setup
	Maximum Humber of an PCF Detector // Perimities Advanced
	Stars Used to Solve
· ·	Pixel Scale X 0 352 Y 0 352 T FITS available See from Scale
	(arcsec/pixel) RA 0th 54m 27n
	Approx. Center Dec 22" 01"35" Center Search Sky Online
	- Calden Salar
	Reference GSC-1.1 (corrected) Use stars from 2 10 20
	Path CNGSC11V Search Area (as % of image) 150
	Solving using 71 image and 58 catalog stars
	Average residuel 0.1 arcsec; order 3 PA 05h 34m 27.4s, Dec +22" 01" 38.8" PA 05h 34m 27.4s, Dec +22" 01" 38.8"
	Pos Angle +01 57.2, HL 27.4.5 mm, 0.36 /Poces 500 Unse
D Camera Control ? X	
Expose Guide Setup	
Exposure Preset Seconds	
Readout ModeSubframe	
Mode0 O Single	
Speed Frame Type X:1350 Y: 643 W: 442 H: 416	$\sim$
Filter Wheel X Binning Y Binning Options	ي د
Luminance 2 Same O Camera 2	Screen Stretch 7 X
Camera 1 Information Guider Information Exposing Light Camera Irla	
187 of 300,000 sec Filter: Luminance Cooler power 56%	2746
Cooler power 56% Sensor Temp -30.0 Sensor Temp -30.0 Setpoint: -30.0	
M1-0001L Internal to 200	Ministration and Ministration and Ministration
3D(1) Elapsed 0.03.08 of 1.40.00	648 1 648 1727 6 Update

Fig. 9: MaxIm DL

This is the software with which most of the imaging is done. It allows us to tweak most parameters when taking the image. It controls the camera of the telescope with settings for all required parameters. On top of that a multitude of monitoring features for the camera is included.

After taking the images it also allows us to do some processing and further manipulation of the images like aligning images from different dates and animating them.

 $\rightarrow$  This is used when taking images and afterwards for slight edits

#### 3.2.6 Astroart

		MSB Astroart 7.0 - 64 bit - Demo - [#6 Unbenannt01.fit [66%]]							- 0	8
	Datei Bearbeiten Ansicht Bild Filter Arithmetik Farbe Mask	e <u>W</u> erkzeuge <u>P</u> lug-in Fenster <u>Hilf</u> e							-	- 8 ×
	) 🗁 🔂 🔛 🔛 😁 🔕 🚼 📭 🕾 🗔 📖 🖂 💽 I		-						_	40
11				Ste	rne #6	Unbenann	t01.fit	[271/1000]	· (8)	
11			N#	Xc	Yc	ADU	AP	R.A.º	DEC.	-
C			1	135.87	70.99	1622367				
			2	921.04	758.81	653115				
-			3	1121.04	836.89	246589			1	
			4	998.04	320.88	182148				
K		× · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	5	1346.18	142.05	160682				
K	XX VX X X		6	135.79	860.30	149272				
			7	126.82	356.26	132018				
C	Section Section Constraints		8	990.95	537.85	118174	-			
-		i u ya ku ya wa ku	9	1110.19	97.94	9/261	1.1		-	
2			10	781.85	608.31	96435				
1	$X_{M} = \mathcal{K}_{M} \mathcal{K} = \mathcal{K}$	×	11	1222 71	712.02	91400	-			
	KOLEXII XOLEXII XU X		12	1053 78	352.82	86534				
	Strand Strand		14	393.09	902.15	82433				
			15	32.91	25.94	80821	1.0			
TA.			16	90.76	115.96	77718				
			17	754.77	189.23	75738				
:.	8000 × 0		18	610.95	240.11	72434				
AF			19	235.89	69.97	71255				
Ał	XXX X X X X	keyoke akaka kalèn na kakan	20	1114.87	257.25	66799				
	💥 👾 X X 🗸 X V		21	179.08	615.05	65420				
	Y™ UXX × ™×8		22	1169.82	382.97	65044				
-	X X X X X X		23	591.85	615.11	60590				
	1 Sec. 9 Sec. 9		24	19.26	95.98	59124	-	-		
4			25	982.73	171.07	57906			-	
2			20	756.99	405 32	53505				
			28	503.13	671.06	52263	-			
			29	663.78	200.99	49090		-		
-	X X	XXX 95(96)(XXXX XX XXX XXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXXX XXXX	30	1328.72	651.28	47885				
			31	785.71	103.26	47374	1.0			
		X XM A X XA A AX () A XM A A	32	620.90	115.31	47308				
		NA KANA KANA KANA KANA KANA KANA KANA K	33	785.14	284.85	46843				
	$X^{\circ}\chi^{\circ} \to X^{\circ}$		34	25.92	799.82	45533			-	
	- 9 SY - 12 XAX - 6 SY	eyzer ny nove <del>xex</del> exe xe or xe -	ĩ	1	000.05	15.00			+	
			*	- >/	N (		1. 1	N		
								K 🗶 🗌		
	Reference and the second se	STERNER CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONT								
	Status (Status)				23			20.0		
								1.57		
	$X = \bigcirc X (X) X \bigcirc X$							<u> </u>		
				/ X		1				
	R = 358:153680 B = 934 V = 852:3922 Lin									
	Sterne #6 Unbenannt01.fit	Drücken Sie F1 für Hilfe (Englisch)								

Fig. 10: Astroart

This software is an image editor for astronomical purposes. It has a multitude of features, specific to astronomers. This allows for better editing of the images from MaxIm DL.

 $\rightarrow$  This is used for photo editing

#### 3.2.7 Stellarium



Fig. 11: Stellarium

This software takes on a multitude of functions: It can control where the telescope is pointing, as well as corrections. Furthermore, it has a complete sky map integrated, which allows it to be used for measurements like distance between objects, or the specific coordinates of an object. Most importantly Stellarium shows when and were objects can be seen from earth.

 $\rightarrow$  This is during the entire process; beginning from first thoughts until deep into research and when taking images

#### 3.2.8 GIMP



Fig. 12: GIMP

This software is an image editor mainly intended for photographs, but it can achieve a multitude of functions. Here I mainly used it for extracting pixel measurements and visualizations.

 $\rightarrow$  This is used after imaging for editing

#### 3.2.9 Inkscape

File	Edit	View	/ Lave	ar Obie	oct Dath	n Tevt	Filte	rs Evt		ins He	aln																	8
Ð	õ	ŧ	- <u>-</u>	Ð [	) } ~		Q	یں م <u>ر</u> ۲	6		Q	Q	X	5	6	6	<b>.</b>	×	7	т	≣	0	I <del>F</del>	Q	*			
₹	W		হ	c.	+ t	<u>=</u> 1	₽	h 1	ī	X: 25,	273				Y: 0,	072				W: 11	,578				<b>e</b> r			~
K	<b>A</b>	-30	սուե	20	-10		uluu	, <sup> 10</sup> , , ,	Luu	20	³	30 1 1 1 1 1		ů	<b></b>  50	uulu	<b>√</b> Fill	l and S	troke (	Shift+(	Ctrl+F							Ð
5																			🗌 Str	oke <u>p</u> ai		📑 Stro						5
	3-0-																×				5 E	Ð 🔳	I ?					17 17
\$																	Flat	t color										.4
<ul> <li></li> <li><td>2-</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><th></th><th></th><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>RGB</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>CM</td><td>ΥK</td><td>Wheel</td><td>CI</td><td>٩S</td><td>題</td></li></ul>	2-																	RGB					CM	ΥK	Wheel	CI	٩S	題
<b>N</b>																						0						Æ
51																												Ð
() Al																												<sup>7</sup> ٦
	-					Ē		Ĩ				ŧ	1															*
										+							<u>A</u> :	88	888	885	883	800			100			Z
/ n4	-																6	0 /							RGBA;	00000	00ff	(*) t.1
	6																						Ble	nd mo	ode: No			-TT
*	Ē							F.		F			+				Blur	(%)								0,0 -		<u>.</u>
<u>*</u>	8								1		/						Ора	city (%	b)							100,0 -		<u>č</u>
0								T	B	T	В						Aligr	n and E	Distrib	ute (Shi	ift+Ct	rl+A)						
	3-							ĨF	-	-							Expo	ort PN(	Glmag	e (Shif	t+Ctrl							
						-		┛╞	5		L,	+	1				Filla	and Str	oke (Sl	nift+Ct	rl+F)						^	
	4								L	E							Laye	rs (Shi	ft+Ctr	l+L) :61. Ch-	1. 7)							
										<u> </u>							Text		ont (Sh	nı+cır	ι+1)						^	
	-																											
	- -																											
	8=																											
	7=	_				_																						
× Fill	Nor	10	-	-	r - 11 -				Alt	· click+	o seler	cturd	or cer	oll me		heel to	cycle	select	drage	د د	<u>к</u> . д	5 13					_	<
Strok	e:	0,26	5 <sup>0: 10</sup>	- 00	+ <	õ 🖌	•Lay	er 1 🗸	mo	ve sele	cted o	r sele	ct by to	outho	use-w	neerto	cycie-:	select;	aragi	ر <del>ان</del>	<. 4 ∕: −3	5,15 Z	: 198		- + 1	R: 0,0		- +

Fig. 13: Inkscape

This software is an SVG (scalable vector graphics) editor, meaning it hasn't got pixels and is unsuited for most applications. It has infinite detail and makes sketches extremely easy.

 $\rightarrow$  This is used before and after imaging for sketches

#### 3.2.10 LibreOffice Calc

	Calculation.ods - L	ibreOffice Calc		-	e 😣			
File Edit View Insert Format Styles Sheet Data Tools Window Help								
☴ • ◘ • ₿ • ₽ ᇢ 뎮 ᄮ ロ ē • 볼 ℤ ウ ·	- Č - 🔍 🗛 🔛	- III - ↓↑ <sup>2</sup> ↓ <sup>2</sup> ↓	Se 🔽 🖬	📰 Ω • 🕾 🗖 🗖 🔚 • 🚍	1.			
Liberation Sans 🗸 10 pt 🗸 <b>B</b> Z U II - 🗔 -		⊞ <u>⊤</u> ‡ ⊥ ⊡	. % 00 🖻	야 야 🖻 🖻 🗖 • 🔜 • 🛄 •	<b>♦</b> ≠ -			
A13				<b>~</b>	<b>∏</b> :			
A	В	с	D	E I	ila			
1		Measurement in						
2 calculate t	30230757493,92	sec			∐ Z			
3	3 6406842E±16	m		Desired 6500+1600 ly				
	3,04000422+10				0			
6 degree size:	0,024072222222	° degree		From the Stellarium measureme	f			
7	0,000420139536	° radian			<u> </u>			
8								
9 using r/(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	8,66541629E+19	m		Desired (CE00) 1000 h				
10	9159,352248611	цХ		Desired 6500±1600 ly				
12								
13								
14					II.			
15								
16					Í			
17								
19								
20								
21								
22								
23								
24								
26								
27								
28								
29								
30								
K K b K + nm pixel O III + S II tollerances size_explained siz	e_tollerances							
Sheet 3 of 4 Default	English (US/	A) I	. 8	Average: ; Sum: 0 – — + +	150%			

Fig. 14: LibreOffice Calc

This software is an alternative to Excel and with it I executed all of my calculations. In addition, most graphs are generated in LibreOffice Calc.

 $\rightarrow$  This is used after imaging for calculations and visualizations

## 4 Color photography

#### 4.1 Taking the raw images

The first step is checking if the equipment is plugged in correctly with all connections being present and most importantly just doing a quick visual check. Then required programs can be started: the first being Dimension 4 with which we will keep track of the time.

With the next program MaxIm DL the temperature of the camera is set and cooling enabled. Cooling is required, because lower temperature reduce image noise.

While the camera is cooling down the telescope controller can be set up. This is done by getting out of the park position and connecting it with Stellarium.



Fig. 15: Screenshot when taking the images on 2021-01-12

After verifying that the telescope and Stellarium are calibrated correctly, a first picture can be taken with the covered lens. This dark image can be used for noise removal. Now the cover gets removed and FocusLynx is started to automatically keep the object the telescope is pointing to in focus.

Finally, the object can be selected in Stellarium, and the telescope gets moved to the correct position. Now SpecTrack is added to control the position of the telescope and correct micro movements to achieve a higher accuracy. After entering exposure time and measurement area for the sensor the photos can be taken in MaxIm DL. At last the raw images get exported and are ready for further calibration.

All the images from 2021 were made between 19:34 pm and 20:26 pm on 12<sup>th</sup> January, by remote control of Mr. Koch's Celestron 14 EdgeHD telescope at his private observatory.

### 4.2 Image processing

After installing Astroart I first imported all .fit files. These are the raw files from the previously captured images.

In order to develop the pictures firstly the color-matrix has to be defined. The raw images only contain the brightness values and not the color of the individual sub-pixels, in this case the Bayer pattern. After that the raw images get converted into a color image and all images get aligned using the star pattern in the background to remove any offset. At last the image gets rotated, as it faces in the wrong direction:



Fig. 16: Crab Nebula colored and rotated

The stars are still big, which can be shrunk to look better by identifying all stars and sharpening these:



Fig. 17: Crab Nebula sharpened stars

Now the picture gets a color correction as the stars should be white, this is done by editing the color-curves:



Fig. 18: Crab Nebula color correction

Finally, some hot pixels remain, which should get removed. This can be done automatically via a predefined function and then the red / green / blue broken pixels get covered up by their surrounding color:



Fig. 19: Crab Nebula final result

#### 4.2.1 Time-lapse

Here are the individual steps in a time-lapse in form of an animation, where all four steps as described previously are shown sequentially (just click on the image):



Fig. 20: Crab Nebula all steps animated <u>https://youtu.be/dG7jq\_3Dwt4</u>

## 5 Data from external sources

## 5.1 Spectrum



Fig. 21: Spectrum of Messier 1 – The Crab Nebula by André Rondi, Thierry Maciaszek, Christian Buil 2002-09-02 from http://astrosurf.com/buil/us/mission2/mission2.htm#SPECTRUM%200F%20MESSIER%201

This spectrum had to be acquired from an external source, as Crab Nebula has become too dim to create an own spectrum in the conditions of the city with our equipment. I need it for the calculation of expansion velocity, size and distance of the Crab Nebula in <u>chapter</u>  $\underline{7}$ . The distortion of the lines is because parts of the Nebula expand towards and other parts away from the observer.

#### 5.1.1 General information

Object	M1 Crab Nebula
Date	2 <sup>nd</sup> September 2002
Туре	2D spectrum
Exposure time	8 × 3 minutes
Position of slit	Nearly at the center of M1 (crab nebula)
Colors	Artificial, yet represent the covered spectral domain

#### 5.1.2 Reference image of crab nebula

In the image below the reference picture itself can be seen, as it was taken back in 1909 and printed into the paper at NASA. It shows how the Nebula looked back than, which to-gether with the current image can be used to calculate the birthdate of Crab Nebula.



CRAB NEBULV IN Taurus Photographed with 60-Inch Reflector, on Seed 23 plate, October 13, 1900 Exposure 3 hours. Enlargement from negative 8.8 diameters. Scale: 1 mm = 371

© American Astronomical Society · Provided by the NASA Astrophysics Data System

*Fig. 22: Reference image of Crab Nebula* <u>http://articles.adsabs.harvard.edu//full/1910ApJ....32...26R/0000034P007.html</u> In the following image the equipment can be seen with which the image was taken. It shows the then new photographic plate-carrier of the 60-inch reflector. This made it possible to keep the photo plate stable enough for long time exposures, which made dim objects possible to photograph.



Fig. 23: photographic plate-carrier <u>http://articles.adsabs.harvard.edu//full/1910ApJ....32...26R/0000030P003.html</u>

Object	M1 Crab Nebula
Date	13 <sup>th</sup> October 1909
Туре	Image
Exposure time	3 hours
Technique	Image on photo plate
Reflector Size	60 in ≈ 1,524 m
Seed on plate (Grain)	23
Size	-8.8 diameters
Scale	1 mm = 3.1"

## 6 Birthdate of Crab Nebula

#### 6.1 Preparation

The first step is taking the previously edited and colored image and turn it back to black and white. This will be the image from the current year.

The image of 1909 is in a PDF, because of which it has to be extracted. I did this with LibreOffice Draw and trimmed it with GIMP straightening it and removing any remaining borders.

Now that the images are ready, they can be prepared to analyze them. After importing them in MaxIm DL, they can be aligned using the alignment function. Marking two stars at the corners of the two Images MaxIm DL aligns, rescales, and stretches them to fit on top of each other. After testing different stars and selecting the best results, they can be exported and further manipulated in GIMP.

Animating the image reveal the images especially well. Movement in the upper left and lower right corners are especially prevalent. Yet this is a good result, as little to none can be found in the middle where crab nebula resides (just click on the image).



Fig. 24: Animation of switching between images https://youtu.be/zWcgKFdqF0A

#### 6.2 Creating more representations



Using GIMP I created a multi layer representation for further analysis. I began with importing both pictures and coloring them by turning any brightness color into a single color channel: turning the image from 1909 red and the one from 2021 green. Laying these on top of each other and turning the newer picture from 2021 transparent, resulted in seeing them at the same time and keeping the two images animated. On top of these, it was easy to add the markings for the following measurements.

Fig. 25: Layers in GIMP

These stacked layers can be seen here (just click on the image):



Fig. 26: Layers animated on top of each other <u>https://youtu.be/nHs7Em376FI</u>

### 6.3 Calculation of the expansion rate of the Crab Nebula

#### 6.3.1 Calculation

In the following with the help of the data from 6.1 and 6.2 I will calculate the birthdate of crab nebula:

#### 6.3.1.1 Reference Points



Fig. 27: Marked reference points

The first step is finding a recognizable point in the 1909 image ( $M_{1909}$ ) and its equivalent in the 2021 image ( $M_{2021}$ ). The same has to be done with the remnant, meaning remaining neutron star ( $R_{1909} \approx R_{2021}$ ). After recognizing all four points the corresponding coordinates can be noted.

When doing this it is important to know, that the x-coordinates run left to right and the y-coordinates run up to down.

Theory	Practical example (Point 1)
Anno 1909	Anno 1909
<u>M</u> easurement point: $M_{1909} = (x_{M1} y_{M1})$	<u>M</u> easurement point: $M_{1909} = (550 322)$
<u>Remnant point</u> : $R_{1909} = (x_{R1}   y_{R1})$	<u>Remnant point</u> : $R_{1909} = (599 507)$
Anno 2021	Anno 2021
<u>M</u> easurement point: $M_{2021} = (x_{M2} y_{M2})$	<u>M</u> easurement point: $M_{2021} = (546 297)$
<u>Remnant point</u> : $R_{2021} = (x_{R2} y_{R2})$	<u>Remnant point:</u> $R_{2021} = (603 506)$

#### 6.3.1.2 Distance from neutron star to measurement point

To calculate, the distance from remnant point to measurement point first the coordinate systems have to be moved to the same origin. To do that, we set one of the two points (e. g.  $R_{1909}$ ) to be at the origin and subtract it from the other point. This means, that the distance from origin to the new point is equal to the distance from the measurement point to remnant point. Now the calculation is continued with the following method:

Theory	Practical example (Point 1)
Anno 1909	Anno 1909
Origin: $M_{1909} = (0 0)$	Origin: $M_{1909} = (0 0)$
New point: $R_{1909} = (x_{R1} - x_{M1}   y_{R1} - y_{M1}) = (x_{P1}   y_{P1})$	New point: $R_{1909} = (599 - 550 507 - 322) = (49 185)$
Anno 2021	Anno 2021
Origin: $M_{2021} = (0 0)$	Origin: $M_{2021} = (0 0)$
New point: $R_{2021} = (x_{R2} - x_{M2} y_{R2} - y_{M2}) = (x_{P2} y_{P2})$	New point: $R_{2021} = (603 - 546 506 - 297) = (57 209)$

Using Pythagoras theorem the distance itself can be calculated:

Theory	Practical example (Point 1)
Anno 1909	Anno 1909
Length: $R_{1909} = \sqrt{(x_{P1})^2 + (y_{P1})^2}$	Length: $R_{1909} = \sqrt{(49)^2 + (185)^2} \approx 191,3792047$
Anno 2021	Anno 2021
Length: $R_{2021} = \sqrt{(x_{P2})^2  (y_{P2})^2}$	Length: $R_{2021} = \sqrt{(57)^2  (209)^2} \approx 216,6333307$

Theory	Practical example (Point 1)				
The function itself					
$y=m \cdot x + n$					
Here $y$ is the radius of crab nebula in pixels and $x$ the year.					
Anno 1909					
$y_1 = m_1 \cdot x_1 + n_1$					
Anno 2021					
$y_2 = m_2 \cdot x_2 + n_2$					
Receive the gradient and constant					
$y_1 - m \cdot x_1 = y_2 - m \cdot x_2$					
Transformed for Gradient:	Gradient:				
$\rightarrow m = \frac{y_2 - y_1}{x_2 - x_1}$	$m \approx \frac{216,63 - 191,38}{2021 - 1909} \approx 0,2254833$				
Transformed for Constant:	Constant:				
$\rightarrow n = y_1 - m \cdot x_1$	$n=216,63-0,23\cdot 2021\approx -239,0683544$				
n is how big the crab nebula was at 0 AD, according to our function. Of course, it is impossible for it to be negative big.					
Insert into the previous function:	Insert into the previous function:				
$y=m \cdot x + n$	$y = 0,2254833 \cdot x - 239,0683544$				

#### 6.3.1.3 Setting up the linear function

#### 6.3.1.4 Calculating the precise year

Theory	Practical example (Point 1)					
Solving for x with y = 0:	Solving for x with y = 0:					
$0 = m \cdot x + n$	$0 = 0,2254833 \cdot x - 239,0683544$					
$x = \frac{n}{m}$	$x = \frac{0,2254833}{-239,0683544} \approx 1060,2$					
x is approximately our explosion year, as						

this is the point in time when the size would

have been roughly 0.

#### 6.3.2 Spreadsheet Analysis

In practice the previously defined, is calculated in LibreOffice Calc and the coordinates are read in GIMP. I have explained it once with the first point, but as they all are the same I don't have to repeat myself.

	Calculation.ods - LibreOffice Calc – 🔹 😣																							
	File Edit View Insert Format Styles Sheet Data Tools Window Help																							
	- P1 - P2 -	2	8	X	6		7. (		~ ~ C	A	- 22	<b>#</b> # -	↓ <sub>↑</sub> 2	ւ Հւ	57			0.	-02 F	. 🗆	La 🖪	<b>.</b>		1
		-			·			_						· ·										
Lib	eration Sans		10 pt		<b>B</b> <i>I</i>	<u>U</u>	_ <u>⊺</u> ₄	<mark>ہ</mark> -	E Ŧ	1	5	Ť	÷ .	_ 0	• %	0 <u>.</u> 0	00.	<b>00</b> . 9		•	• 📰	- 🗖 -	•	
A1			f∗ ∑ -	= Poi	nt 10																	•	- []	:
	A						D								Н				J		ŀ	<	гIJ	
	Point 10	1																						
2	1909	7							202	1														Ъ
3																								_
4	Measurement	Point		Remn	ant Poi	nt		Mea	suremer	nt Poir	nt	Ren	nnant P	oint										
5	Pixel pos x	Pixel	pos y	Pixel	pos x	Pixel	pos y	Pixe	l pos x	Pixe	el pos y	Pixe	el pos x	Pix	el pos	у								Ø
6	752		278		59	9	507	V		5	- 24	40	e	03		506								
_/	X <sub>M1</sub>	<u>X M1</u>		KR1		X R1		ÅM2		X M2		<u>Å</u> 62		¥ B2									10	Ť×
<u>8</u>	Distanco boty	uoon r	ointe:					Diet	anco bot	woon	points:												10	
10	-153		229					Dist	ance bei -17	'2	2f	36											10	
11										-													10	
12	Pvthagoras:							Pvth	adoras:														10	
13	275,40878708	3						316,	7648970	5													10	
14																							10	
15																								
16																							U	
17																							Þ	
18				Settin	g up fui	nction																		
19				Gradi	ent			y int	ercept															
20				0,369	250981	8		-429	9,491337	3														
21				m				n																
23				Solve	for y=0	)						_												
24				1163,	142031	8																		
25																								
20										_														
27										-														
29																								
30																								
31																								
32																								
33																								
_34			_																			_		
M	< > > + +	Point1	1 Point2	Point	t3 Poir	nt4 P	oint5 Po	oint6	Point7	Point8	B Point9			ithmetic	average									
Sheet	10 of 11						Default			Eng	lish (USA)			I. 8			Avera	ge: ; Sum					+ 1	130%

Fig. 28: Animation of flipping through almost identical pages <u>https://youtu.be/ATAxIn75iYE</u>

All the calculations for 1909 are in red and all the calculations for 2021 in green. The calculations for both are in olive green, with the result for each of the separate data points. This means on each sheet the entire previously calculation is performed once, overall ten times (just click on the image).Now that all calculated values are available, the arithmetic average is calculated, which is approximately the year 1060  $\pm$  86,8 compared to the literary value of the 4 July 1054<sup>8</sup> as in the night it was seen by Chinese and Japanese astronomers<sup>9</sup>. More information of the tolerances can be found in the chapter 8 "Analysis of the Results".

# 7 Expansion Velocity, Size and Distance of the Crab Nebula

## 7.1 Preparation

The first step is getting a spectrum that I can use for the following calculations. For this I used the aforementioned spectrum. As this image by itself isn't of much use I first had to edit them and interpret them to further analysis.

To better recognize parts of the image I created the yellow and blue markings as seen below. These don't influence the results as only the position of the individual pixels are important and not the brightness. Furthermore, the colors are artificial and are ignored. In the image below the measurement lines from the calculation are already filled in and are thicker than the one pixel that they actually are to increase visibility.



Fig. 29: Spectrum of Crab Nebula with markings by André Rondi, Thierry Maciaszek, Christian Buil 2002-09-02 from http://astrosurf.com/buil/us/mission2/mission2.htm#SPECTRUM%200F%20MESSIER%201

In the image above the left yellow marked line is the O III emission line and the right yellow marked line is the emission line for S II. The each two blue lines mark the forbidden lines for O III, He I and S II are so called as they shouldn't exist and are a result of the Doppler effect.

## 7.2 Calculations

#### 7.2.1 Conversion Rate

To calculate the conversion rate from pixels to Ångström we have to know the values of each at a precise point. These can be identified by comparing the visible lines with known lines. These are the two yellow lines that are marked in the above image. The one on the left is O III emission line and the right S II line. With this the conversion rate from pixel can be calculated with the following formula:

To calculate the corresponding Å valuables for each position we need the Å value at the beginning position of the spectrum. This can be calculated with the following expression:

2,873288
$$\overline{3} \cdot \frac{\text{\AA}}{\text{pixel}} - (5006,843 \text{ Å} \cdot 121 \text{ pixel}) \approx 4659,1751 \text{ Å}$$

Using this it is possible to set up a linear function, which can be used to calculate the corresponding values:

2,873288 
$$\overline{3} \cdot \frac{\mathring{A}}{pixel} \cdot pixel + 4659,1751 \,\mathring{A} = Corresponding Value \,\mathring{A}$$

#### 7.2.2 Expansion Rate

To calculate the size of the nebula and the distance to earth the expansion speed is needed. This can be calculated with the help of the Doppler effect. It states that if the emitter of a wave moves towards the observer, the wave will decrease in wavelength. The opposite happens when the source is traveling away from the observer, as the wave length will increase.

This effect can be seen in the spectrum: The left blue line is the line from the part of crab nebula moving towards earth. The right line is the opposite coming from the part moving away from earth, with the middle part being emitted from those parts that are not accelerating towards or away from earth. This understanding requires that the nebula is expanding in all directions evenly and with the same speed.

The three parts are shown visually in the diagram down below, these correspond with the emission lines and forbidden lines on the right:



Fig. 30: The O III emission line



Fig. 31: Diagram of where the spectral lines originate (not to scale)

#### 7.2.2.1 Getting the data

Theory	Practical example for O III						
Required Points:	Required Points:						
$\lambda 0 \rightarrow$ Middle of Borders (yellow line)	$\lambda 0 = 121  px$						
$\lambda 1 \rightarrow \text{Left Border (blue line)}$	$\lambda 1 = 113 px$						
$\lambda_2 \rightarrow \text{Right Border (blue line)}$	$\lambda 2 = 127 \ px$						
	Converted to Å:						
	Via the previously calculated function						
	$\lambda 0 \approx$ 5006,84 Å						
	$\lambda 1 \approx 4983,85 \text{ Å}$						
	$\lambda 2 \approx 5024,08 \text{ Å}$						

#### 7.2.2.2 Calculating the Expansion Velocity

Theory	Practical example for O III
Calculating the difference:	Calculating the difference:
$\Delta\lambda = \lambda 2 - \lambda 1$	$\Delta\lambda \approx 5024,08 \text{ Å} - 4983,85 \text{ Å} \approx 40,23 \text{ Å}$

#### The speed itself:

c = lightspeed

$$v = \frac{(\Delta \lambda \cdot c)}{(\lambda 0 * 2)}$$

The speed itself:  

$$c=299792458 \frac{m}{s}$$
  
 $v = \frac{(40,23 \text{ Å} \cdot 299792458 \text{ m})}{(5006,84 \text{ Å} * 2 \text{ s})} \approx 1204298,04 \frac{m}{s}$   
 $\approx 1204,3 \frac{km}{s}$ 

#### 7.2.3 Size and Distance

With the help of the now gathered and calculated data it is possible to calculate both size and distance.

#### 7.2.3.1 Time since Crab Nebulas birth

Theory	In Practice					
In years:	In seconds:					
$t_{years} \approx time of picture - time of birth$	$t \approx (2021, 2 - 1060, 6) \cdot 60 \cdot 60 \cdot 24 \cdot 364, 24425$					
In seconds:	$\approx$ 30230757493,92 s					
$t_{seconds} \approx t_{years} \cdot 60 \cdot 60 \cdot 24 \cdot 364,24425$						

#### 7.2.3.2 Size of Crab Nebula

Theory	In Practice
$r = v \cdot t = radius$ v is the speed calculated previously t is the time since Crab Nebulas birth	$r \approx 1204298,04 \frac{m}{s} \cdot 30230757493,92 s$ $\approx 3,640684 \cdot 10^{16} m$

#### 7.2.3.3 Distance to earth

Measuring the distance between the edge of the nebula and the remnant in Stellarium.

Theory	In Practice (Point 1 and O III)				
Converting degree to radian:	Converting degree to radian:				
$rad = \frac{deg \cdot \pi}{180}$	$\frac{0,024072^{\circ} \cdot \pi}{180} \approx 0,000420139  rad$				
Calculate the distance:	Calculate the distance:				
$\frac{\text{Radius}}{\tan(rad)}$	$\frac{3,640684 \cdot 10^{16} m}{\tan(0,000420139)} \approx 8,66541 \cdot 10^{19} m$				
	$\approx$ 8,66541 $\cdot$ 10 <sup>19</sup> m				

Now that all calculated values are available, the arithmetic average of the distance to earth is approximately 7129 ±1709 lightyears<sup>10</sup>. More information of the tolerances can be found in the chapter 8 "Analysis of the Results".

## 8 Analysis of the Results

#### 8.1 Birthdate of Crab Nebula

First of all the standard deviation is about 87 years, with a minimum of 919 years and a theoretical maximum of 1173 years. All values are below in the table and integrated in a graph.

Point 1	Point 2	Point 3	Point 4	Point 5	Point 6	Point 7	Point 8	Point 9	Point 10
1060,25	1173,78	1111,31	1015,24	1147,77	966,3	1044,32	1005,06	919,15	1163,14



Fig. 32: Distribution of the resulting birthdates of Crab Nebula

These show the difference between results, when calculating a percentage. It means that my result should deviate up to about 8,1%. On top of that there could be a higher deviation, as I could have even more error than anticipated.

#### 8.2 Expansion Velocity, Size and Distance of the Crab Nebula

#### 8.2.1 Explanation

The first opportunity for error is when setting up the function where I could be 1 pixel off in each direction.

After that the same can happen for the O III line and on top of that I used a second line, the S II line, to exclude even more error. After that I got these values:

	+1	-1
O III	16,73% more	12,55% less
S II	11,81% more	09,56% less

Finally I used all ten points from the initial calculation, which were all used to calculate the final results:

	tolerances							
			Measurement in					
	calculate t	30230757493,92	sec					
1.png								
	calculating the size of crab nebula	3,64068419521258E+016	m					
	degree size:	0,02407222222222	° degree					
		0,00042013953605	° radian					
0,02407222222222								
	using r/(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	8,66541629295497E+019	m					
		9159,35224861059	ly					

Fig. 33: Single calculation for the first point and no tolerances

	Sebagaan			Laboration 1		1980-000	Leanur .
	esteration (	30230757403.92	Measurement in	calculate t	Measurement in 24945479147 0072 sec	calculate t	Measurement in 34419749254 1049 see
1.prg	calculating the size of crab rebula	3.64068419521258E+016	m	calculating the size of crab nebula.	2,96804540225724E+016m	calculating the size of crab rebula	4 1451612899291E+016m
	degree size:	0,024072222222222	* degree	degree size:	0, 02407222222222 * degree	degree size:	0, 03407222222222 * degree
0,024072222222222		0,00042013953605	" nadian		0,00042013953905 * nadian		0,00042013953005 * nadian
	using m(cos(q)) to calculate the distance to earth	9159.35224961059	m N	using m(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	7,05402734613828 + 019 m 7467.1055954951 M	using m(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	9,899158901142132+019m 10428,5372379972b
2.000	calculate t	30230757493,92	SOC	calculate t	246454291147,0072 sat:	calculate t	34419740254, 1046 sac
	calculating the size of crait rebula	3,64068419521258E+016	m	calculating the size of crait rebula.	2,96804540225724E+016m	calculating the size of crait retuila	4,1461632899291E+016m
	degree size:	0,027038888888888	* degree * radien	degree size:	0,027638888888899 * degree 0,000482389612704 * nadian	degree size:	0,027038989899999 0,000482399612704* nadian
0,027628888888899	using n'(cos(a)) to calculate the distance to earth	7.54718554657439E+019	m	using n'(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	6, 152799906-63890E + 019m	using n(cosig)) to calculate the distance to earth	8,59297725166105E+019m
	entreduter t	017.3014170018	Measurement in	coloridates a	Measurement in	coloridation t	Measurement in
3.prg	calculating the size of crab rebula	3.64069419521258E+016	m	calculating the size of crab rebula	2.9030/540225724E+010m	calculating the size of crab rebula	4.1451632392291E+016m
	degree size:	0.03479611111111	* degree	degree size:	0,03473611111111 * degree	degree size:	0,03473611111111 * degree
0,03478611111111		0.000607132172853	* nadian		0,000607132172853 * nadium		0,000907132172853* nadiun
	using m(cos(o)) to calculate the distance to earth	5 99652581541088E+019 6338 33278799182	m M	using n(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	4,88963079619787E+019m 5167.29982999223b	using n(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	6.82744707982364E+019m 7216.61725746128W
4.000	calculate t	30230757493,92	SARC	calculate t	249454291147,0072 sat:	calculate t	34419746254, 1046 sec
	calculating the size of crait relada	3.64063419521258E+016	m	calculating the size of crab nebula	2,96904540225724E+016m	calculating the size of craib nebula	4,1461632999291E+016m
	degree size:	0,034925	* degree * radien	dagraa siza:	0,034825 * degree 0,00002255241259 * nadien	degree size:	0,034925 * degree 0,000939595241259 * nadian
0,0348625	using n(cos(o)) to calculate the distance to earth	5,97267897180976E+019	m	using n'(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	4,39313930359496E+019m	using n'(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	6, 80029584797087E+019m
	andre de ser a	6313 12995441718	ly. Measurement in		5141 7J705130417M Measurement in	andre de ser a	7187.91878775194W Measurement in
5.prg	calculation the size of crub relada	3.64093419521259E+016	m	calculation the size of crait relaxia	2 9690/540225724E + 016m	calculation the size of crait relada	4 1/51/612992201E + 01/6m
	degree size:	0.04053611111111	* degree	degree size:	0.04053611111111 * degree	degree size:	0,040536111111111 * degree
0,04053611111111		0,0007074886048463	* radan		0,00070748393048401* nadien		0,000707483904943* nadien
	using n(cos(o)) to calculate the distance to earth	5,14592540834428E+019 5439,24744832169	m by	using n(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	4.19518404498776E+019m 4404.31303402575M	using n(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	5 858981-43086167E+019m 6192 9482598113M
6.000	calculate t	30230757493,92	MANUALINETHERE IN SARC	calculate t	24645429147,0072 sec	calculate t	34419746254, 1046 sec
	calculating the size of crab nebula	3.64063419521258E+016	m	calculating the size of crab nebula	2,90334540225724E+016m	calculating the size of crab nebula	4,1451632999291E+016m
	degree size:	0.01/0000000000000000000000000000000000	* degree * nadian	degree size:	0.0180999999999999999 0.000315710999139 * nation	degree size:	0.01303333333333 0.000315710929139* nation
0,01308999999999999	using n(cos(o)) to calculate the distance to earth	1,15317106139847E+020	m	using n'(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	9,40115616537287E+019m	using n(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	1,31296254504436E+020m
	index dates t	12189 027736-028	Neasurement in		Masurement in	index dates t	Autoracted to a construction
7.prg	calculation the size of crub relada	3.64069419521258E+016	m	calculation the size of crab redula.	2 9690/540225724E+016m	calculation the size of crab relada	4 1451/63299291E+016m
	degree size:	0.030404444444	* degree	degree size:	0.033494444444 * degree	degree size:	0.03049444444444 * diagnae
0,0304944444444		0,000532228459122	* radian		0,0005322284591221* nadius		0,000532223459122* nadius
	using n(cos(o)) to calculate the distance to earth	6,84045317203839E+019 7230,36470778252	m N	using n(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	5,57993739407252E+019m 5894 51095999723M	using n(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	7,7883150130128E+019m 8232,25549420025iv
8.000	calculate t	30230757493,92	SIRC	calculate t	246454291147,0072 sec	calculate t	34419746254, 1046 sec
	calculating the size of crait relada	3,64068419521258E+016	m	calculating the size of crab rebula	2,96904540225724E+016m	calculating the size of crait relada	4 1461632899291E+016m
	degree size:	0,025475	* degree * radien	degree size:	0,025475 * degree 0,00044462252946 * nadian	degree size:	0,025475 * dispres 0,000444622624946 * nadian
0,025475	using n(cos(o)) to calculate the distance to earth	8,1882561-05277E+019	m	using n'(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	6.6754254990013E+019m	using n'(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	9,32287914642101E+019m
	entredation t	354 92595-64	Measurement in	entre dans a	Measurement in	colector o	Measurement in
9.png	calculating the size of crab rebula	3.64069419521258E+ 014	m	calculating the size of crab rebula	2.96904540225724E+016m	calculating the size of crab rebula	4 1451612899291E+016m
	degree size:	0,050438888888888	* degree	dogran siza:	0,050-038888888899 * degree	dagrae size:	0,05043838383899 * dagnas
0,050-0388888888899		0,000890324682159	* nadian		0,0003331324632159" nation		0,000890324682159" nadian
	using m(cos(d)) to calculate the distance to earth	4 135614198399492+019 4371 34765681046	m N	using m(cos(g)) to calculate the distance to earth	3,37153404385092E+019m 3563 71429620982ly	using microsogi) to calculate the distance to earth	4,70867401431085E+019m 4977.07267720094ly
10,000	calculate t	30230757493,92	SARC	calculate t	246454291147,0072 sec	calculate t	34419746254, 1046 sac
	calculating the size of crab nebula	3.64068419521258E+016	m	calculating the size of crab nebula	2,96904540225724E+016m	calculating the size of crais nebula	4,1461632999291E+016m
	degree size:	0.000511526914239	* degree * radien	degree size:	0.022330111111111 * degree 0.000511529314229 * nadiet	degree size:	0.022200000000000000000000000000000000
0.024308111111111	when advantation to coloritate the distance to conth-	7.11230202004616+010		when effectively to only date the distance to conth	E 9077734995104734E+01049	when allowed all to ended the third distance to worth	8 1036090403623484 010

Fig. 34: Calculations for all points

After filtering out all divergent values I ended up with 27 values with a much higher accuracy:



This then finally resulted in a distance to earth of approximately 7129  $\pm$ 1709 lightyears.

When calculating a percentage it means that my result should deviate to about  $\pm$  24%. This is quite a bit higher than calculating with the birthdate, which is to be expected, as there a lot more variables to consider and more sources that can increase inaccuracy.

Compared to the value of  $6500 \pm 1600 ly^{10}$ , my results overlap yet aren't very close to each other. This is due to all of the inaccuracy described above and maybe more as a different method to calculate the distance might be used in the sources.

#### 8.2.2 The data

Here you will find all measured values listed along with standard deviation and official results. For a better comparison the average and official results are marked in yellow.

	Velocity in $\frac{km}{s}$
For O III	1204
+1	1032
-1	1377
For S II	1216
+1	1087
-1	1344
Average	<mark>1210</mark>
Standard Deviation	± 136,18
→ literary value <mark>1150</mark>	$\frac{km}{s}$ 11

	Nebula radius in <i>ly</i>	
Standard value	3,8482	
+1	3,1372	
-1	4,3814	
Average	<mark>3,7889</mark>	
Standard Deviation	± 0,6242	

 $\rightarrow$  literary value 5,5 ly <sup>12</sup>

I used only three values for as it is only a byproduct of the distance, which I wanted to calculate. These are the calculated value and the other two beeing worst case values in both directions.

	Distan	ice in ly	
Distance between remnant and mea- surement point	tolerances		
	1	1,16733618430926	0,874497861768056
0,0241	9159,35	7467,11	10428,54
0,0276	7977,38	6503,51	9082,78
0,0348	6338,33	5167,29	7216,62
0,0349	6313,13	5146,74	7187,92
0,0405	5439,25	4434,31	6192,95
0,0181	12189,03	9937,03	13878,03
0,0305	7230,36	5894,51	8232,26
0,0255	8654,99	7055,93	9854,29
0,0504	4371,35	3563,71	4977,07
0,0293	7522,98	6133,06	8565,42
Average	7129		
Standard Deviation	± 1709		

 $\rightarrow$  literary Value 6500 ± 1600 *ly* <sup>10</sup>

## 9 Conclusion

To summarize: I reached my goals that I defined at the beginning. It was possible for me to acquire previously unknown knowledge I was interested in, meaning the birth of Crab Nebula. I believe that I could transfer my new knowledge that I learned in this project work to you, the reader, without overwhelming you.

I had to acquire lots of data and had to process all of it with the help of LibreOffice Calc, which was a lot of work but at the end of the day I'd say it was clearly worth it. The more values I used the more accurate the results got, this was especially apparent when calculating the birthdate of Crab Nebula. Nevertheless, the accuracy is pretty good with my available tools and data. Compared to the literary target values mine weren't that much off.

## 10 References

1: Massless particle, 2021, <u>https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Massless\_particle</u>

2: Kurzgesagt – In a Nutshell , Schwarze Löcher erklärt - Von der Geburt bis zum Tod, 2015, <u>https://youtu.be/e-P5IFTqB98</u>

3: Nasa, The Life and Death of Stars - Death of a Massive Star, 2021, <u>https://map.gsfc.nasa.gov/universe/rel\_stars.html</u>

4: Kurzgesagt – In a Nutshell , Neutronensterne: Fast so krass wie schwarze Löcher, 2020, <u>https://youtu.be/bRu7i011Fxo</u>

5: Team Baader Planetarium, Die Baader L-RGB-C CCD-Filter, 2016, <u>https://www.baader-planetarium.com/de/blog/die-baader-l-rgb-c-ccd-filter/</u>

6: ZWO Color gekühlte Astro Kamera ASI 183MC Pro Sensor, 2021, <u>https://www.teleskop-express.de/shop/product\_info.php/info/p10231\_ZWO-Color-gekuehlte-Astro-Kamera-ASI-183MC-Pro-Sensor-D-15-9-mm.html</u>

7: 14" EdgeHD Tubus (OTA) mit 3" Schiene (76mm), 2021, https://www.celestron.de/ce\_de/edgehd-14-ota.html

8: Stephenson, F. Richard; Green, David A., Was the supernova of AD 1054 reported in European history? , 2003, <u>https://ui.adsabs.harvard.edu/abs/2003JAHH....6...46S/abstract</u>

9: SN 1054, 2021, https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/SN\_1054

10: D. L. Kaplan,S. Chatterjee,B. M. Gaensler and J. Anderson, A PRECISE PROPER MOTION FOR THE CRAB PULSAR, AND THE DIFFICULTYOF TESTING SPIN-KICK ALIGNMENT FOR YOUNG NEUTRON STARS, 2008, https://iopscience.iop.org/article/10.1086/529026/pdf

11: VIRGINIATRIMBLE, THEDISTANCETOTHECRABNEBULAANDNP0532, 1973, https://iopscience.iop.org/article/10.1086/129507/pdf

12: Hester, J. J., The Crab Nebula : an astrophysical chimera, 2008, <u>https://ui.adsabs.harvard.edu/abs/2008ARA%26A..46..127H/abstract</u>

## **11 Acknowledgements**

Finally I want to send out my thanks to course tutor **Bend Koch** for guiding me throughout research and writing, especially within calculating and setting up the necessary formulas. Due to the Corona-Pandemic it wasn't possible to do the imaging in school as intended and Mr. Koch allowed me to use his private telescope remotely.

Furthermore I'd like to thank the **Carl-Fuhlrott-Gymnasium** and **Humboldtgymnasium Solingen** for making this project course possible.

## 12 Final declaration

I ensure that I have written the paper independently, that I have not used any sources or aids other than those indicated, and that any passages in the paper that I have taken from other works, either verbatim or in spirit, have been marked as borrowed, indicating the source in each case.

Ich versichere, dass ich die Facharbeit selbstständig verfasst, dass ich keine anderen Quellen und Hilfsmittel als die angegebenen benutzt und die Stellen der Facharbeit, die ich anderen Werken im Wortlaut oder dem Sinn nach entnommen habe, in jedem Fall unter Angabe der Quelle als Entlehnung kenntlich gemacht habe.

Solingen, 17 May 2021

Nathan Morroad

Nathan Mossaad